LICENSING PANEL

1 NOVEMBER 2004

Chair: * Councillor O'Dell

Councillors: * Branch * Knowles

* Denotes Member present

PART I - RECOMMENDATIONS - NIL

PART II - MINUTES

12. <u>Attendance by Reserve Members:</u>

RESOLVED: To note that there were no Reserve Members in attendance at this meeting.

13. **Declarations of Interest:**

RESOLVED: To note that the following interest was declared:

Agenda Item
8 – Application For an Annual
Variation To A Public Entertainments

Licence – VUE (Previously Warner Village) Cinema, St Georges Centre, Harrow.

Nature of Interest

Councillor Knowles declared a non-prejudicial interest arising from the fact that he has previously visited the Vue Cinema.

14. **Arrangement of Agenda:**

RESOLVED: That all items be considered with the press and public present.

15. **Minutes:**

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 26 May 2004, having been circulated, be taken as read and signed as a correct record.

16. Public Questions:

RESOLVED: To note that no public questions were received at the meeting under the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 18.

17. **Petitions:**

RESOLVED: To note that no petitions were received at the meeting under the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 15.

18. **Deputations:**

RESOLVED: To note that no deputations were received at the meeting under the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 16.

19. Application For an Annual Variation To A Public Entertainments Licence - Vue

(Previously Warner Village) Cinema, St Georges Centre, Harrow:
The Panel received a report of the Chief Environmental Health Officer which detailed an application for an annual variation to a public entertainments licence for Vue (previously Warner Village) Cinema.

Vue Cinema was located in the St. Georges Centre and had a capacity for up to 1,887 persons.

Mr Dosanjh, Operations Director and Mr Dave, General Manager of Vue Cinema stated on behalf of the applicant that there were several advantages to be gained from granting the variation to the current licence. In relation to the needs of customers, Members were informed that firstly, there was a demand from students and shiftworkers for late screenings of films and secondly, an extension would mean the ability to show a film at the same time as it was premiered in the United States. Benefits to the company included brand consistency and the ability to plan ahead. In relation to the latter, it was stated that this was important as 'Movie Houses' often only notified cinemas 20-25 days before releasing a film.

The Panel was informed that adverse effects of the variation to the licence would be minimal. Screenings of films were already staggered in order to avoid large numbers of patrons arriving at/leaving the venue at the same time. In addition, the late licence would only be used for screening high profile films, therefore it was unlikely that there would frequently be large numbers of people in the building and the surrounding area in the early hours of the morning.

In the discussion that followed, Members sought clarification on a number of issues. Responding to a query regarding the company's policy on patrons leaving the venue, it was advised that the cinema displayed notices asking patrons to 'Drive Carefully' at the end of each screening and staff members endeavoured to escort patrons off the premises.

There were two objectors to the application present at the meeting. The first objector, Mrs McNair, a resident of Headstone Road, Harrow, raised concerns about the potential noise pollution created by late night screenings. She had been unaware, however, that the late licence would only be used to screen a limited number of films throughout the year. Her fears were largely abated once she was reassured that the cinema would not be open in the early hours of the morning throughout the week.

Sergeant Davis, who represented the Metropolitan Police, had also objected to the licence application. He informed the Panel that if the variation to the current licence was granted, certain conditions regarding security arrangements should be included. In response, a Member suggested that a restriction on the number of occasions on which the late licence could be used be a condition of the licence.

RESOLVED: That the variation to the public entertainments licence for Vue Cinema, St. Georges Centre, Harrow, be granted with the following conditions attached:-

AMENDED CONDITIONS:

- 1) The maximum number of occasions on which the licence can be extended to 3am will not exceed 40 occasions per year.
- 14 days prior written notice will be issued by the applicants to the Police, Licensing Authority and Fire Services for each requested occasion, details of which should include the names of the films to be shown and the auditoria to be used.
- The applicants will adhere to the advice given by the Police regarding the number of security staff, taking into account crime and disorder and public safety matters.
- 4) All members of staff, excluding those involved in the retail section(s), are to be equipped with radios/communication devices at all times during the operating period of the licence.

[Note: The Chair asked Mr Dosanjh and Mr Dave, on behalf of the applicant, if they consented to the conditions listed above. Responding, they confirmed that they agreed to the conditions.]

(Note: The meeting having commenced at 6.02 pm, closed at 7.50 pm)

(Signed) COUNCILLOR PHILLIP O'DELL Chair